ASSOCIATION BUSINESS

AD INTERIM BUSINESS OF THE COUNCIL OF THE AMERICAN PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION, 1938-1939.

Office of the Secretary, 2215 Constitution Ave., Washington, D. C.

LETTER NO. 5.

February 15, 1939.

To the Members of the Council:

- 41. Use of Text of N. F. VI. Motion No. 9 (Council Letter No. 4, page 119) has been carried with the following members voting: YES—Dm, Ro, Ke, Mo, Mi, Ga, La, Sw, Ck, Je, Hi, Co, Du, Fi, Li, Ch.
- 42. Selection of an Auditor. Motion No. 10 (Council Letter No. 4, page 119) has been carried with the following members voting: YES—Dm, Ro, Ke, Mo, Mi, Ga, La, Sw, Ck, Je, Hi, Co, Du, Fi, Li, Ch.
- 43. Alabama Polytechnic Institute Student Branch. Motion No. 11 (Council Letter No. 4, page 119) has been carried with the following members voting: YES—Dm, Ro, Ke, Mo, Mi, Ga, La, Sw, Ck, Je, Hi, Co, Du, Fi, Li, Ch.
- 44. Election of Members. Motion No. 12 (Council Letter No. 4, page 119) has been carried with the following members voting: YES—Dm, Ro, Ke, Mo, Mi, Ga, La, Sw, Ck, Je, Hi, Co, Du, Fi, Li, Ch. Applicants for membership numbered 150 to 336, inclusive, are declared elected.
- 45. Time of 1939 Meeting. Local Secretary Robert C. Wilson and his associates have recommended that the week of August 20th be selected as the time for the 1939 meeting at the Atlanta Biltmore Hotel, Atlanta, Georgia. This recommendation has been approved by the N. A. B. P. and the A. A. C. P.

(Motion No. 13) It is moved by Kelly that the week of August 20th be approved as the time for the 1939 meeting of the Association and affiliated organizations.

46. Temple University Student Branch. The following application accompanied by the membership applications and dues for the signers together with the proposed Constitution have been received:

"The undersigned students of Temple University wish to establish a Student Branch at the School of Pharmacy and petition the Council of the American Pharmaceutical Association to approve the formation of the Branch.

Professor Frank H. Eby has been selected to act as Student Advisor and we present his name for approval.

Zosia J. Drozd	Samuel Rubinstein	Reba Nevel
Alton G. Grube	Alan-Gordon C. Vogt	Rose Parker
M. Irvin Lipman	Solomon Wexler	Rosella Rumore
Helen Pachuta	Grellanda Eannaccone	Marie Steigerwalt
Eugene Reese	Donald F. Johnson	William W. Wittmer, Jr.

PREAMBLE.

We, the students of Temple University, in order to place ourselves in a more favorable position for study, acquire a better knowledge of our professional problems, for the purpose and privilege of sharing in the undertakings and interests of the American Pharmaceutical Association, do constitute ourselves into a Student Branch of the American Pharmaceutical Association and adopt this Constitution and By-Laws.

CONSTITUTION.

ARTICLE I—Name. The name of this organization shall be the Temple University Student Branch of the American Pharmaceutical Association.

ARTICLE II-Members. This branch shall consist of active and honorary members.

ARTICLE III—Active Members. Any person actively enrolled in the Temple University School of Pharmacy upon signifying his intention of adhering to the provisions enumerated in the Preamble and in the Constitution of the American Pharmaceutical Association, and to the Preamble and By-Laws of the Temple University Student Branch of the American Pharmaceutical Association, may be elected to active membership in this branch by a vote of approval of three-fourths of the active enrollment at the time.

ARTICLE IV—Honorary Members. Pharmacists, teachers, chemists and other persons who may be thought worthy of the distinction may be elected honorary members by a unanimous vote. They shall not be required to contribute to the funds nor shall they be eligible to hold office or to vote.

ARTICLE V—Officers. The officers of the Branch shall be a president, vice-president, secretary and treasurer.

ARTICLE VI—Student Advisor. The student advisor shall be a member of the faculty of the School of Pharmacy of Temple University and a member of the American Pharmaceutical Association. He shall be appointed by the American Pharmaceutical Association, upon recommendation of the Student Branch, in January to serve until December.

ARTICLE VII—Committees. At the first meeting in January of each fiscal year or as soon after as possible, the president shall appoint three standing committees as follows: A Committee on Program to consist of three members; a Committee on Student Activities to consist of three members; and a Committee on Membership to consist of three members.

ARTICLE VIII—Executive Committee. The officers of the Branch and the chairman of the standing committee shall constitute the Executive Committee, to transact all the necessary business usually transacted by such a committee.

ARTICLE IX—Meetings. The meetings of the Branch shall be held at least once a month and as many more times as might seem advisable from the opening date of the school each year to the close. Date of the meeting shall be selected by the officers of the Branch.

ARTICLE X-Quorum. Seven members shall constitute a quorum.

ARTICLE XI—Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Branch shall be from the first of January until the thirty-first day of December of the following year.

ARTICLE XII—Elections. The officers shall be elected by ballot by a majority at the last meeting held in December and shall be installed at the first meeting held in January, and shall serve for one year or until their successors have been elected. Nominations for officers shall be made at a meeting previous to the meeting at which the election is held.

ARTICLE XIII—Presiding Officers. In the absence of the president, the next succeeding officer as stated in Article V shall take the chair.

ARTICLE XIV—Secretary. The secretary shall keep fair and correct minutes of the proceedings of the meetings and send reports of the same to the JOURNAL OF THE AMERICAN PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION as often as required, and to such journals and newspapers as he may deem proper. He shall preserve on file, all reports and papers of every description presented to the Branch, and shall be charged with necessary business and scientific correspondence. He shall read all papers handed to him by the president for the purpose and shall call and record all ayes and nays, whenever they are required to be called, shall notify the chairman of every standing and special committee of his appointment, giving him a list of his colleagues and stating the business upon which the committee is to act.

ARTICLE XV—Treasurer. The treasurer shall collect and take charge of the funds of the Branch and shall give receipts for the same. He shall pay no money except upon order of the secretary, countersigned by the president, and accompanied by the proper vouchers. He shall present a statement of the condition of the Branch, at each December meeting. He shall receive the amount of his expenses indigent to the duties of his office.

ARTICLE XVI—Order of Business: (1) Reading of the minutes of the previous meeting; (2) Introduction of newly elected members; (3) Unfinished or deferred business; (4) New business; (5) Program; (6) Nominations or elections; (7) Adjournment.

ARTICLE XVII—Amendments. The constitution shall be amended only upon vote of three-fourths of the members of this Branch who are in regular attendance at the Univerity at the time the proposed amendment shall be submitted.

ARTICLE XVIII—Rules of Order. On all points not specifically mentioned in the By-Laws of this Branch, the By-Laws of the American Pharmaceutical Association shall take precedence over the other decisions on parliamentary rule.

(Motion No. 14) It is moved by Little that the application to establish the Temple University Student Branch of the Association and the proposed Preamble and Constitution be approved.

47. Applicants for Membership. The following applications, properly endorsed, accompanied with the first year's dues, and recommended by two members of the Association, have been received:

Nos.: 337, Maurice Slagle, 601 Campus, Pullman, Wash.; 338, James D. Bradbury, 2725 Grand Ave., Louisville, Ky.; 339, Raymond R. Lucas, 303 Lansing, Louisville, Ky.; 340, Hugh E. Wedding, Clovenport, Ky.; 341, Jesse Hanger, Sellersburg, Ind.; 342, Samuel H. Horn, 395 Lindsey St., Frankfort, Ky.; 343, Harry W. McIntosh, 29 W. Spring St., New Albany, Ind.; 344, J. P. Scott, Eli Lilly & Co., Indianapolis, Ind.; 345, Howard E. Fleischer, 124 Lexington Ave., Albany, N. Y.; 346, Rosita Azize, William Johns No. 27, Rio Piedras, P. R.; 347, Albert W. Lewing, 401 Codwise Ave., New Brunswick, N. J.; 348, Leo Reich, 114 Judor Pl., New York, N. Y.; 349, Jacob S. Dorfman, 115 W. 68th St., New York, N. Y.; 350, Orville L. Prather, 106 W. 6th St., Tulsa, Okla.; 351, Waldemar Gnerich, 503 Market St., San Francisco, Calif.; 352, Patrick H. O'Malley, 190 Stevenson St., Buffalo, N. Y.; 353, John Heerema, 90 State House, Des Moines, Io.; 354, David B. Getz, Bel Air, Md.; 355, Henry J. Wildhack, 103 S. Main St., Newark, N. Y.; 356, Thos. O. Trisler, 5224 Lindenwood, St. Louis, Mo.; 357, John J. Bamberg, 7159 Wentworth Ave., Chicago, Ill.; 358, Harry B. Reibel, 930 E. Grand St., Elizabeth, N. J.; 359, Mary R. Kettl, Mercy Hospital, Pittsburgh, Pa.; 360, Frank J. Stein, 167 Varick St., New York, N. Y.; 361. William Parr, 704 Franklin St., Tampa, Fla.; 362, E. W. Gibbs, 1029 S. 20th St., Birmingham, Ala.; 363, Edward T. Bischoff, Ivoryton, Conn.; 364, Joseph Greenberg, 216 Columbus Ave., New York, N. Y.; 365, James H. Murray, 443 Lakewood, Detroit, Mich.; 366, Conrad J. Badzmierowski, 4218 Archer Ave., Chicago, Ill.; 367, Murray Breese, 12 E. 41st St., New York, N. Y.; 368, Frank Hulme, Jr., 325 S. Trenton Ave., Wilkinsburg, Pa.; 369, John H. Wank, 148 Cottage Grove, Highland Park, Mich.; 370, Louis H. Levitsky, 3999 Dickinson Ave., Bronx, N. Y.; 371, Morris Krigelman, 156 DuPont St., Phila., Pa.; 372, Harry L. Schrader, 347 S. Smallwood St., Baltimore, Md.; 373, Nathan Rosen, 1898 Harrison Ave., New York, N. Y.; 374, Arthur C. Kuntz, 4016 Upton Ave., Toledo, O.; 375, Harold Neham, 1122 President St., Brooklyn, N. Y.; 376, John J. Morrissey, 329 Park St., Lawrence, Mass.; 377, George L. Baker, 3031 W. Bancroft, Toledo, O.; 378, John T. Duerkop, 401 Alles Ave., Des Plaines, Ill.; 379, Donald J. Maxwell, 230 W. South St., Akron, O.; 380, L. A. Haluska, 513 N. Monroe St., Peoria, Ill.; 381, Michael M. Colonna, 15 Depot Plaza, Mt. Kisco, N. Y.; 382, Hardy A. Nego, 1909 Lexington Ave., New York, N. Y.; 383, Samuel A. Dreyer, 87 Wolfs Lane, Pelham, N. Y.; 384, George Fioto, 410 Court St., Brooklyn, N. Y.; 385, Myron H. Blotcky, 418 N. St. Paul, Dallas, Tex.; 386, Raymond E. Schmitz, 1330 Kenmore Ave., Buffalo, N. Y.; 387, Carlton W. Cofran, 196 North St., Buffalo. N. Y.; 388, Frank J. La Barbera, Jr., 532-9th St., Brooklyn, N. Y.; 389, Rosalie Lazriowich, Box 14, Iowa City, Io.; 390, Samuel Fuchs, 79 Orange St., Brooklyn, N. Y.; 391, Albert Price, 5003 N. 9th St., Philadelphia, Pa.; 392, Jacob Schweitzer, 113 W. 18th St., New York, N. Y.; 393, Arthur A. Hoehn, 314 E. Grand Ave., Eau Claire, Wis.; 394, Donald F. Johnson, 349 W. Broad St., Hazelton, Pa.; 395, M. Irvin Lipman, 4621 N. 10th St., Philadelphia, Pa.; 396, Reba Nevel, 4800 Westminster Ave., Philadelphia, Pa.; 397, Helen I. Pachuta, 41 S. Maple St., Mt. Carmel, Pa.; 398, Rose L. Parker, 5016 Pulaski Ave., Philadelphia, Pa.; 399, Harry E. Reese, Kennet Sq., Pa.; 400, Samuel Rubinstein, 6052 Delancey St., Philadelphia, Pa.; 401, Rosella V. Rumore, 128 N. 11th St., Easton, Pa.; 402, William W. Whittmer, Jr., First Ave., Runnemede, N. J.; 403, Alan-Gordon Vogt, 621 Pembroke Rd., Bryn Mawr, Pa.; 404, Zosia J. Drozd, 3150 Cedar St., Philadelphia, Pa.; 405, Grellanda Eannaccone, 447 Union Ave., Westbury, L. I., N. Y.; 406, Alton G. Grube, 211 Beyer Ave., Punxsutawney, Pa.; 407, Solomon Wexler, 1420 Ridge Ave., Philadelphia, Pa.; 408, Marie M. Steigerwalt, 3805 Chestnut St., Philadelphia, Pa.; 409, John O. Barnett, 4216 N. 8th St., Philadelphia, Pa.; 410, Francis A. Mladinov, 252 W. 25th Place, Chicago, Ill.; 411, Edward G. Sonnenberg, 167 Main St., Menasha, Wis.; 412, Harry C. Foster, 105 N. Gale St., Indianapolis, Ind.; 413, Jacob T. Keefer, 1638 Arthur Ave., Chicago, Ill.; 414, G. L. Reinhold, 6401 W. 16th St., Berwyn, Ill.; 415, Charles Gutkin, 2659 Broadway, New York, N. Y.; 416, Charles L. Guthrie, 130 South Ave., Petersburg, Va.; 417, Albert M. Keefer, 1638 Arthur Ave., Chicago, Ill.; 418, James C. Grainger, Chattanooga Medicine Co., Chattanooga, Tenn.; 419, John W. Umhau, 831 N. Capitol St., Washington, D. C.; 420, Ellery T. Priest, 868 N. Park St., Columbus, O.; 421, John O. Callahan, 3640 St. Aubin Ave., Detroit, Mich.; 422, Samuel A. Reilly, 309 Park Pl., Irvington, N. J.; 423, Ernest Geiger, New Weston Hotel, New York, N. Y.; 424, S. B. Penick, Jr., 132 Nassau St., New York, N. Y.; 425, A. P. Bopf, 1135–53 Elizabeth Ave., W., Linden, N. J.; 426, W. Wilson McNeary, 1719 Mt. Vernon St., Philadelphia, Pa.; 427, William Paul Luedke, 319 Second Ave., Eau Claire, Wis.; 428, Frank V. Patterson, 2824 Minnesota Ave., Bissings, Mont.; 429, Louis T. Sabatino, 8 Texas Ave., Parkville, Md.; 430, Anthony J. Dobropolsky, 219 N. Belnard Ave., Baltimore, Md.; 431, Walter S. Frost, Burnham Soluble Iodine Co., Auburndale, Mass.; 432, Hubert G. Price, Rex Hospital, Raleigh, N. Car.; 433, Arthur D. Barnes, 1324 Jefferson Ave., Buffalo, N. Y.; 434, George C. Mulhauser, 1645 W. Genesee St., Syracuse, N. Y.; 435, Isadore Trunk, 2928 Harding, Detroit, Mich.; 436, Jacob P. Hagen, 1123 Fulton Rd., Canton, O., 437, William W. Hanscom, Jr., 1973 Ocean Ave., San Francisco, Calif.

(Motion No. 15) Vote on applications for membership in the Association.

E. F. KELLY, Secretary.

THE ASSOCIATION FOR THE ADVANCEMENT OF PROFESSIONAL PHARMACY.

The first regular meeting of the A. A. P. P. was held at the Hotel Pennsylvania, New York City, Tuesday, January 24th, in honor of Dr. Henry V. Arny, with several hundred in attendance. Dr. L. J. Piccoli gave an address of welcome in which he outlined the aims and purposes of the Association. Correspondence was read from leading educators and others prominent in Pharmacy, most of whom had been very helpful in framing the constitution of the Association, and all of whom had shown a deep interest in its purposes.

Dr. Fred Lascoff gave a brief talk on the constitution. Mr. Fred Frankfurter spoke briefly on "Professional Relations." Dr. C. W. Ballard, Dean of Columbia College of Pharmacy, expressed his gratification at having been able to attend, and wished the Association the best of success. The guest of honor, Dr. H. V. Arny, was then introduced. He told the assembly how happy he was to see his dream of twenty-five years come true. Since 1912 he had been advocating such an organization. "I am," he said, "certain of the success of an organization which has had such an auspicious beginning, and particularly glad that I was on hand to help launch it." Dr. Arny stated that his services and advice were always at the disposal of the organization.

Dr. Arny was then informed of his election as the first Fellow of the Association for the Advancement of Professional Pharmacy and Mr. Frankfurter presented him with a framed copy of the Code of Ethics of the A. Ph. A. as emblematic of the honor.

Mr. Cyrus D. Hakes, chairman of the Constitution Committee told of the great amount of time and thought that had been given to the constitution. He emphasized the fact that the final draft had not been drawn and asked for comment and suggestions.

Other guest speakers were then introduced: Dr. Edmund Branower, dentist; Dr. Harry Goldwag, Professor of Materia Medica at the first Institute of Podietry; Mr. A. Lichterman, representative of the Department of Health of New York City; and Mr. Michael Petix, optometrist. Each spoke of the relation of his branch of Public Health to the pharmacist.

.

The second regular meeting was held at the Hotel Dauphin, 67th St. & Broadway, New York City. About 100 pharmacists met for dinner at 7:00 p.m., and the business meeting followed. The guests included Dr. E. Fullerton Cook, chairman of the revision Committee of the U. S. P.; Dr. J. Leon Lascoff, president of the A. Ph. A.; Dr. C. W. Ballard, dean of the Columbia College of Pharmacy; Dr. Walter Bastedo, president of the U. S. P. Convention; Rev. Charles Deane, S.J., regent of the Fordham College of Pharmacy; Dr. Charles Lieb, professor and head of Pharmacology of the College of Physicians and Surgeons of Columbia University; Dr. E. F. Kelly, secretary of the A. Ph. A.

Dr. E. F. Cook spoke on "Professional Pharmaceutical Service." He emphasized the need in this country for professional pharmaceutical establishments and said that the pharmacist must be willing to sacrifice both time and profits to see that the residents of his community are properly served. Dr. J. Leon Lascoff thanked Dr. Cook and assured him that the members of the Association would do everything possible to uphold the standards of professional Pharmacy.

The president announced that the next meeting on March 28th would consist of a Symposium on Ophthalmic Preparations.

IRVING KANTOR, Secretary.